Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009
Houston, Texas

Houston
Independent
School
District

9
0
0
2

Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009
Houston, Texas

Houston
Independent

9
0
0
2

School
District

Hattie Mae White Educational Support Center
4400 West 18th Street, Houston, Texas 77092-8501

HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Certificate of Board ............................................................................................................................
Letter of Transmittal ...........................................................................................................................
HISD Administrative Organization .....................................................................................................
Elected and Appointed Officials ..........................................................................................................
GFOA Certificate of Achievement ......................................................................................................
ASBO Certificate of Excellence .........................................................................................................

PAGE
v
vi
xiv
xv
xvi
xvii

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditors’ Report .............................................................................................................
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) ........................................................................
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets .............................................................................................................
Statement of Activities .................................................................................................................
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ........................................................................................
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of
Net Assets .................................................................................................................................
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances – Governmental Funds ....................................................................................
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities .......................................................
Statement of Net Assets – Proprietary Funds..............................................................................
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net Assets – Proprietary Funds ......................................................................................
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds ...........................................................................
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets – Fiduciary Funds ................................................................
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets – Fiduciary Funds ............................................
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ....................................................................................
Required Supplementary Information:
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund (Unaudited) ...............................................
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – Special Revenue Fund (Unaudited) .................................
Notes to Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) ...........................................................
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules:
Combining Statement of Net Assets – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ..............................................
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Assets – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ......................................................
Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds .............................................
Combining Statement of Net Assets – Internal Service Funds ......................................................
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Assets – Internal Service Funds ..............................................................
Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Internal Service Funds .....................................................
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets – Agency Funds ...................................................
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities – Agency Funds ...............................

2
5

17
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
28
29
30

65
66
67
70
71
72
74
75
76
78
79

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Other Supplementary Information:
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual – Debt Service Fund .....................................................................................
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual – Capital Renovation Fund ...........................................................................
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets Budget and Actual – Food Service Fund ....................................................................................

PAGE

81
82
83

STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)
Financial Trends:
Net Asset by Component ................................................................................................................
Expenses, Program Revenues, and Net (Expense)/Revenue ........................................................
General Revenues and Total Changes in Net Assets ....................................................................
Governmental Funds Fund Balances ..............................................................................................
Governmental Funds Revenues .....................................................................................................
Governmental Funds Expenditures and Debt Service Ratio ..........................................................
Other Financing Sources and Uses and Net Change in Fund Balances ........................................
Fund Balance and Cash Flow Calculation Worksheet ....................................................................
Schedule of Expenditures for Computation of Indirect Cost for 2010-2011 ....................................
Revenue Capacity:
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property ..................................................................
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates. ..................................................................................
Principal Property Taxpayers ..........................................................................................................
Property Tax Levies and Collections ...............................................................................................
Schedule of Delinquent Taxes Receivable .....................................................................................
Debt Capacity:
Legal Debt Margin Information ........................................................................................................
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding ...........................................................................
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt ....................................................................
Outstanding Debt by Type ...............................................................................................................
Demographic and Economic:
Demographic Information ................................................................................................................
Principal Employers .........................................................................................................................
Operating:
District Employees by Function ......................................................................................................
Student Information – General .......................................................................................................
Gifted and Talented/Special Education Student Data .....................................................................
LEP/Economically Disadvantaged Student Data ............................................................................
Teacher Information – General .......................................................................................................
Teacher Information – Education ....................................................................................................
School Building Information.............................................................................................................

87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
97
98
99
100
101
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
116

(This Page Left Blank Intentionally)

Introductory Section

Introductory Section

v

vii

viii

ix

x

xi

xii

xiii

xiv

xv

xvi

xvii

(This Page Left Blank Intentionally)

Financial Section

Financial Section

Basic
Financial
Statements

(This Page Left Blank Intentionally)

(This Page Left Blank Intentionally)

MANAGEMENT’S
AND ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
DISCUSSION AND
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)

Our discussion and analysis of Houston Independent School District’s (the “District”) financial performance
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. It should be
read in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the basic financial statements which
follow this section.
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is a combination of both government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

On the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $1.346
$1.345 billion.
Of this amount,
amount, $627.4
$626 million
millionisisunrestricted.
unrestricted. Total
Totalnet
netassets
assetsof
of the
the District
District increased
increased from
from $1.342
$1.342 billion in
fiscal year 2008 to $1.346
$1.345 billion in fiscal year 2009, an increase of approximately $4.1
$2.7 million. Total revenues
increased $45.1 million from $2.08 billion in fiscal year 2008 to $2.125 billion in fiscal year 2009.
The District’s governmental funds financial statements reported a combined ending fund balance in fiscal year
2009 of $1.206 billion. Of this amount, $45 million is reserved in the General Fund for restricted purposes and
$240.6 million is unreserved, undesignated in the General Fund and is available for spending at the District’s
discretion. The combined ending fund balance of the District decreased $86.5 million from $1.292 billion in
fiscal year 2008. This is due to increases in expenditures for all instructional related services.
The District prepared a budget for the 2008-09 fiscal year that was based upon reducing expenditures by $35
million which included reductions for loss of student enrollment, district-wide operating costs, property
insurance, miscellaneous central office departments, and transfers to other funds. Increases for the budget
totaled $146 million primarily due to the District becoming property wealthy requiring a recapture payment to
the Texas Education Agency of $126 million to be recorded as both a revenue and expenditure to the District.
However, at the end of the fiscal year the District was no longer property wealthy and therefore, the recapture
payment was not necessary. Other operating expenditures increased in the amount of $56 million including
salary and benefits increases, addition of the Aspiring Principals Institute, contract charter schools, appraisal
district fees, addition of the Performance Management department, addition of the Communications and
Publications department and one-time PUA (per unit allocations) funding to schools.
OVERVIEW OF
OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OVERVIEW
THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
contains required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.
Government-Wide Financial
Government-Wide
Financial Statements
Statements

All of the District’s services are reported in the government-wide financial statements, including instruction,
student support services, student transportation, general administration, school leadership, facilities acquisition
and construction and food services. Property taxes, state and federal aid, and investment earnings finance
most of the activities. Additionally, all capital and debt financing activities are reported here.
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers a broad overview of the District’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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The statement of net assets presents
presents information
The
information on
on all
all of
of the
the District’s
District’s assets
assets and
and liabilities,
liabilities, with
with the
the difference
difference
between
the two
two reported
reported as
net assets.
assets. Over
Over time,
time, increases
increases or
or decreases
decreases in
in net
net assets
assets may
may serve
serve as
as aa
between the
as net
useful
indicator of
of whether
whether the
the District’s
District’s financial
financial position
position is
is improving
improving or
or deteriorating.
deteriorating.
useful indicator
The statement of activities details
details how
how the
the District’s
District’s net
net assets
assets changed
The
changed during
during the
the most
most recent
recent fiscal
fiscal year.
year. All
All
changes
in net
are reported
reported as
as soon
soon as
as the
the underlying
underlying event
event giving
giving rise
rise to
to the
the change
change occurs,
occurs,
changes in
net assets
assets are
regardless
of the
the timing
timing of
related cash
cash flows.
flows. Therefore,
and expenses
expenses are
are reported
reported in
in this
this
regardless of
of related
Therefore, revenues
revenues and
statement
for some
some items
items that
that will
will only
only result
result in
in cash
cash flows
flows in
in future
future fiscal
fiscal periods
periods (e.g.,
(e.g., uncollected
uncollected taxes
taxes and
and
statement for
earned
but unused
unused vacation
vacation leave).
leave).
earned but
Both of
distinguish functions
District that
that are
are principally
Both
of the
the government-wide
government-wide financial
financial statements
statements distinguish
functions of
of the
the District
principally
supported
by taxes
taxes and
and intergovernmental
intergovernmental revenues
revenues (governmental
(governmental activities)
activities) from
supported by
from business-type
business-type activities
activities that
that
are
intended to
to recover
recover all
all or
or a
a significant
significant portion
portion of
of their
their costs
costs through
through user
user fees
fees and
are intended
and charges.
charges.

The
financial statements
statements include
not only
only the
the District
District itself,
itself, but
but also
also a
a legally
legally separate
separate entity
entity
The government-wide
government-wide financial
include not
for which
which the
for
the District
District is
is financially
financially accountable.
accountable. Financial
Financial information
information for
for this
this component
component unit
unit is
is reported
reported
separately
as a
a nonmajor
nonmajor governmental
governmental fund.
fund.
separately as
Fund Financial
Fund
Financial Statements
Statements

The
fund accounting
to keep
keep track
track of
of specific
specific sources
sources of
funding and
and spending
spending for
for particular
The District
District uses
uses fund
accounting to
of funding
particular
purposes. The
most significant
significant
purposes.
The fund
fund financial
financial statements
statements provide
provide more
more detailed
detailed information
information about
about the
the District’s
District’s most
funds—not the
the District
District as
as a
a whole.
whole. Funds
Funds are
are accounting
accounting devices
devices that
that the
the District
District uses
uses to
to keep
keep track
track of
of
specific
of funding
funding and
and spending
spending for
for particular
particular purposes.
purposes.
specific sources
sources of
x

Some
required by
State law
and by
by bond
bond covenants.
covenants.
Some funds
funds are
are required
by State
law and

x

The
of Trustees
establishes other
other funds
funds to
to control
control and
and manage
manage money
money for
for particular
particular purposes
purposes or
or
The Board
Board of
Trustees establishes
to
is properly
using certain
certain taxes
taxes and
and grants.
grants.
to show
show that
that itit is
properly using

All of
of the
the funds
funds of
of the
the District
District can
can be
be divided
divided into
into three
three categories:
categories: governmental
governmental funds,
funds, proprietary
proprietary funds,
funds, and
and
All
fiduciary funds.
funds.
fiduciary
are used
to account
account for
for essentially
the same
same functions
functions reported
reported as
as governmental
governmental
Governmental funds are
used to
essentially the
activities in
in the
the government-wide
government-wide financial
financial statements.
statements. Most
Most of
of the
the District’s
District’s activities
activities are
are included
included in
in
activities
governmental funds,
funds, which
how cash
cash and
and other
other financial
financial assets
assets that
that can
can readily
readily be
be converted
converted to
governmental
which focus
focus on
on (1)
(1) how
to
cash flow
flow in
in and
and out,
out, and
and (2)
(2) the
the balances
balances left
left at
at year
year end
end that
that are
are available.
available. However,
However, unlike
unlike the
the governmentgovernmentcash
wide financial
financial statements,
statements, governmental
governmental fund
fund financial
financial statements
provide a
a detailed
detailed short-term
short-term view
that helps
helps
wide
statements provide
view that
determine whether
there are
are more
more or
fewer financial
financial resources
resources that
that can
can be
be spent
spent in
in the
the near
near future
future to
to finance
finance
determine
whether there
or fewer
the District’s
District’s programs.
programs. Because
this information
information does
does not
not encompass
encompass the
the additional
additional long-term
long-term focus
the
Because this
focus of
of the
the
government-wide statements,
statements, we
we provide
provide additional
additional information
information on
on the
the subsequent
subsequent page
page that
that explains
explains the
the
government-wide
relationship (or
(or differences)
differences) between
between them.
them.
relationship
The District
maintains five
five governmental
governmental funds.
funds. Information
Information is
is presented
presented separately
separately in
in the
the governmental
governmental fund
fund
The
District maintains
balance sheet
sheet and
and in
in the
the governmental
governmental fund
fund statement
statement of
of revenues,
revenues, expenditures,
expenditures, and
and changes
changes in
in fund
fund
balance
balances for
for the
the General
General Fund,
Fund, the
the Special
Special Revenue
Revenue Fund,
Fund, the
the Debt
Debt Service
Service Fund
Fund and
and the
the Capital
Capital Renovation
Renovation
balances
Fund, all
all of
of which
which are
are considered
considered to
to be
be major
Data from
from the
the Capital
Fund -- Public
Fund,
major funds.
funds. Data
Capital Renovation
Renovation Fund
Public Facility
Facility
Corporation is
is presented
presented as
as a
a non-major
non-major governmental
governmental fund
fund on
on the
the same
same statements.
statements.
Corporation
used to
to account
account for
for operations
operations that
that are
are financed
financed similar
similar to
to those
those found
found in
in the
private
Proprietary funds are
are used
the private
sector.
These funds
funds provide
provide both
both longlong- and
and short-term
short-term financial
financial information.
information. The
The District
District maintains
maintains two
two types
types
sector. These
of
funds. Enterprise
Enterprise funds
funds are
are used
used to
to report
report the
the same
same functions
functions presented
presented as
as business-type
business-type
of proprietary
proprietary funds.
activities
in the
the government-wide
government-wide financial
financial statements.
statements. The
The District
District uses
uses enterprise
enterprise funds
funds to
to account
account for
for its
its
activities in
food
service, business
business development,
development, and
and medicaid
medicaid programs.
programs. The
Fund is
is considered
considered a
a major
major
food service,
The Food
Food Service
Service Fund
proprietary
fund. We
We use
service funds
funds to
to report
report activities
activities that
that provide
provide services
services for
for the
other
proprietary fund.
use internal
internal service
the District’s
District’s other
programs
i.e., health
health insurance,
insurance, workers’
workers’ compensation,
compensation, print
print shop,
shop, and
and internal
internal services.
programs and
and activities,
activities, i.e.,
services.
Because
these services
services predominately
predominately benefit
benefit governmental
governmental rather
rather than
than business-type
business-type functions,
functions, they
they have
have
Because these
been
included within
the government-wide
government-wide financial
been included
within governmental
governmental activities
activities within
within the
financial statements.
statements.
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Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations and/or other funds. No fiduciary funds are used as clearing accounts to
distribute financial resources to other funds. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in
these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in a
separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. We exclude
these activities from the District’s government-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these
assets to finance its operations.
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.
Immediately following the required supplementary information, combining statements are included for the
nonmajor enterprise funds, the internal service funds, and the agency funds.
The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and
contents of each of the statements. Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial
statements, including the portion of the District’s government they cover and the types of information they
contain.
Figure A-1. Major Features of the District's Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements
Type of Statements
Scope

Required financial
statements

Accounting basis
and measurement
focus

Type of
asset/liability
information

Type of inflow/outflow
information

Government-wide

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

All activities of the District
(except fiduciary funds)
and the Agency's component
units
Ⴗ Statement of net assets

The activities of the district
that are not proprietary or
fiduciary

Activities the district
operates similar to private
businesses

Ⴗ Balance sheet

Ⴗ Statement of net assets

Instances in which the
district is the trustee or
agent for someone else's
resources
Ⴗ Statement of fiduciary
net assets

Ⴗ Statement of activities

Ⴗ Statement of revenues,
expenditures & changes
in fund balances

Ⴗ Statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in
fund net assets
Ⴗ Statement of cash flows

Ⴗ Statement of changes
in fiduciary net assets

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and current
financial resources focus
Only assets expected to
be used up and liabilities
that come due during the
year or soon thereafter;
no capital assets included

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and longterm

All assets and liabilities,
both short-term and longterm; the Agency's funds do
not currently contain
capital assets, although
they can

All revenues and expenses
during year, regardless of
when cash is received or
paid

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
short-term and long-term

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

Revenues for which cash
is received during or soon
after the end of the year;
expenditures when goods
or services have been
received and payment is
due during the year or
soon thereafter
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
GOVERNMENT-WIDE

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position. The
District’s total net assets were approximately $1.346
$1.345 billion at June 30, 2009. Net assets of the District’s
governmental activities increased by $21.1 million. Net assets of the District’s business–type activities
$18.3
million.
decreased by $17
million.
TheDistrict's
District'sCondensed
CondensedStatement
Statementof
ofNet
NetAssets
Assets
The
(in
thousandsof
ofdollars)
dollars)
(inthousands

Governmental
Governmental Activities
Activities
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Long term liabilities
Total liabilities
liabilities
Total
Net assets:
assets:
Net
Invested in
in capital
capital assets,
assets,
Invested
net of
of related
related debt
debt
net
Restricted
Restricted
Unrestricted
Unrestricted
Total net
net assets
assets
Total

$$

$$

Business-type
Business-type
Activities
Activities

Total
Total

2009
2009
1,652,205
1,652,205 $$
2,296,934
2,296,934
3,949,139
3,949,139
380,348
380,348
2,239,053
2,239,053
2,619,401
2,619,401

2008
2008
1,797,560
1,797,560 $$
2,270,537
2,270,537
4,068,097
4,068,097
419,953
419,953
2,339,478
2,339,478
2,759,431
2,759,431

2009
2008
2009
2008
(1,727)
(1,727) $$ 17,063
17,063 $$
21,289
23,316
21,289
23,316
19,562
40,379
19,562
40,379
4,237
6,701
4,237
6,701
290
293
290
293
4,527
6,994
4,527
6,994

2009
2009
1,650,478
1,650,478 $$
2,318,223
2,318,223
3,968,701
3,968,701
384,585
384,585
2,239,343
2,239,343
2,623,928
2,623,928

606,423
606,423
91,064
91,064
632,251
632,251
1,329,738
1,329,738 $$

519,175
519,175
84,771
84,771
704,719
704,719
1,308,665
1,308,665 $$

21,290
23,316
627,713
21,290
23,316
627,713
--91,064
91,064
(4,898)
10,069
627,353
(6,254)
10,069
625,997
16,392
15,036 $$ 33,385
33,385 $$ 1,346,130
1,344,774 $$

2008
Difference
2008
Difference
1,814,623
(164,145)
1,814,623 $$
(164,145)
2,293,853
24,370
2,293,853
24,370
4,108,476
(139,775)
4,108,476
(139,775)
426,654
(42,069)
426,654
(42,069)
2,339,771
(100,428)
2,339,771
(100,428)
2,766,425
(142,497)
2,766,425
(142,497)

542,491
542,491
84,771
84,771
714,788
714,788
1,342,050
1,342,050 $$

85,222
85,222
6,293
6,293
(87,435)
(88,791)
4,080
2,724

Investment in
in capital
and equipment)
less any
any related
Investment
capital assets
assets (e.g.
(e.g. land,
land, buildings,
buildings, furniture,
furniture, and
equipment) less
related debt
debt used
used to
to
acquire those
acquire
those assets
assets that
that is
is still
still outstanding
outstanding is
is $627.7
$627.7 million.
million. The
The District
District uses
uses these
these capital
capital assets
assets to
to provide
provide
services
Although the
the District’s
District’s
services to
to students;
students; consequently,
consequently, these
these assets
assets are
are not
not available
available for
for future
future spending.
spending. Although
investment
in
its
capital
assets
is
reported
net
of
related
debt,
it
should
be
noted
that
the
resources
needed
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
to
repay
repay this
this debt
debt must
must be
be provided
provided from
from other
other sources,
sources, since
since the
the capital
capital assets
assets themselves
themselves cannot
cannot be
be used
used to
to
liquidate these
liquidate
these liabilities.
liabilities. An
An additional
additional portion
portion of
of the
the District’s
District’s net
net assets
assets of
of $91.1
$91.1 million
million represent
represent resources
resources
that
net
that are
are subject
subject to
to external
external restrictions
restrictions on
on how
how they
they may
may be
be used.
used. The
The remaining
remaining balance
balance of
of unrestricted
unrestricted net
assets
million
may
used
meet
the
District’s
ongoing
obligations.
assets $627.4
$626 million
may
bebe
used
toto
meet
the
District’s
ongoing
obligations.
Changes
The District’s
total revenues
billion. A
A significant
significant portion,
portion, approximately
Changes in
in net
net assets.
assets. The
District’s total
revenues were
were $2.125
$2.125 billion.
approximately
57
the District’s
District’s revenue
revenue comes
from property
property taxes.
taxes. Operating
Operating grants
& contributions
contributions provided
provided
57 percent,
percent, of
of the
comes from
grants &
revenue
percent comes
state aid
aid -- formula
formula grants,
grants, while
while only
only 1
1 percent
percent relates
relates to
to
revenue of
of 21
21 percent,
percent, 17
17 percent
comes from
from state
charges
for
services.
(See
Figure
A-2)
The
total
cost
of
all
programs
and
services
was
$2.121
billion.
charges for services. (See Figure A-2) The total cost of all programs and services was $2.121 billion.
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Figure A-2 District
Sources of Revenue
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2008

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2009

Property
Taxes

Property
Taxes
57%

Operating
Operating
Grants &&
Contributions
Contributions

52%

Operating
Operating
Grants &&
Contributions
Contributions

21%

State Aid

21%

State Aid

22%

17%

Charges &
services
services
1%

Other

Interest
Interest
Income

2%

2%

Charges &
services
services
1%

Other
2%

Interest
Interest
Income
2%

Governmental Activities

assets of
of the
the District’s
District’sgovernmental
governmentalactivities
activitiesincreased
increased
$21.1
million
to increases
The net assets
by by
$21.1
million
due due
to increases
in in
maintenance and
andoperations
operationsand
anddebt
debtservice
service
property
taxes.
The
total
cost
of governmental
all governmental
activities
maintenance
property
taxes.
The
total
cost
of all
activities
for for
year ended
endedJune
June30,
30,2009
2009was
was$2.002
$2.002billion.
billion. Funding
Funding
these
governmental
activities
the fiscal
fiscal year
forfor
these
governmental
activities
is byis by
specificprogram
programrevenue
revenueororthrough
throughgeneral
general
revenues
such
property
taxes
investment
earnings.
specific
revenues
such
as as
property
taxes
andand
investment
earnings.
The The
following is
isaasummary
summaryofofthe
thegovernmental
governmentalactivities:
activities:
following
x
x
x

cost of
of all
all governmental activities this year
year was
was$2.002
$2.002billion.
billion.
The cost
was funded
fundedby
byprogram
programrevenues
revenues
directly
attributable
Some of the governmental activities cost
cost was
directly
attributable
to to
specificactivities.
activities.These
Theseprogram
program
revenues
amounted
to $357.3
million.
specific
revenues
amounted
to $357.3
million.
The remaining
cost ofof governmental activities not directly
directly funded
fundedbybyprogram
programrevenues
revenueswas
was
remaining cost
of which
which$1.216
$1.216billion
billionwas
wasfunded
funded
property
taxes
and
$365.1
million
funded
$1.645 billion
billion of
byby
property
taxes
and
$365.1
million
waswas
funded
state aid
aid -- not
notrestricted
restrictedtotospecific
specific
programs.
by state
programs.

Business-type Activities

District’sbusiness-type
business-typeactivities
activities
decreased
$18.3
million
due
an increase
in Food
The net assets of the District’s
decreased
by by
$17
million
due to
antoincrease
in Food
Service operating
operating expenses,
expenses,aadecrease
decreaseinininvestment
investment
earnings,
transfers
to the
General
Service
earnings,
andand
transfers
out out
to the
General
Fund.Fund.
Fundingfor
forthese
thesebusiness-type
business-type
activities
is by
specific
program
revenue
or through
general
revenues
such as
Funding
activities
is by
specific
program
revenue
or through
general
revenues
such as
investment earnings.
earnings. The
Thefollowing
followingisis
summary
business-type
activities:
investment
aa
summary
of of
thethe
business-type
activities:
x
x

cost of
of all
all business-type activities this year
year was
was$119
$120.4
million.
The cost
million.
The majority
of the
the business-type activities cost
by program
program revenues
revenues directly
directly
majority of
cost was
was funded
funded by
attributable to
to specific
specificactivities.
activities.These
These
program
revenues
amounted
to $114.2
million.
attributable
program
revenues
amounted
to $114.2
million.

Changes in Net Assets

assets of
ofDistrict
Districtincreased
increased
$2.7
million
to the
following
activities:
The total net assets
byby
$4.1
million
duedue
to the
following
activities:
x
x
x
x

Operating grants
grants and
andcontributions
contributionsincreased
increased
$12.4
million
to an
increase
in entitlements
Operating
$12.4
million
duedue
to an
increase
in entitlements
fromgovernmental
governmentalagencies.
agencies.
received from
Maintenance and
and operations
operationsproperty
propertytaxes
taxesand
anddebt
debt
service
property
taxes
increased
Maintenance
service
property
taxes
increased
due due
to to
increasesininassessed
assessedvalues.
values.
increases
Earnings on
to to
a a
decrease
of of
daily
average
interest
ratesrates
of 2.18
Earnings
on investments
investmentsdecreased
decreaseddue
due
decrease
daily
average
interest
of 2.18
percent.
percent.
Instructionexpenses
expensesincreased
increased$84
$84million
million
due
increases
in funding
for performance
the performance
Instruction
due
to to
increases
in funding
for the
pay pay
program, library
librarybooks,
books,fine
finearts
artsprogram,
program,
increased
enrollment
salaries
benefits.
program,
increased
enrollment
andand
salaries
andand
benefits.
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District'sChanges
Changesinin Net
NetAssets
Assets
TheDistrict's
The
(inthousands
thousandsofofdollars)
dollars)
(in
Governmental
GovernmentalActivities
Activities
Revenues
Revenues

2009
2009

Business-type
Business-typeActivities
Activities

2008
2008

2009
2009

2008
2008

Total
Total
2009
2009

2008
2008

Difference
Difference

Program Revenues
Revenues
Program
Charges for
for services
services
Charges

$$

Operating grants
grants and
and contributions
contributions
Operating

1,885
1,885 $$

1,756
1,756

$$

24,770
24,770 $$

25,943
25,943 $ $

89,392
89,392

86,398
86,398

-

355,445
355,445

343,082
343,082

1,216,067
1,216,067

1,077,008
1,077,008

365,109
365,109

462,759
462,759

Earnings on
on investments
investments
Earnings

26,928
26,928

48,973
48,973

219
219

Other
Other

44,503
44,503

32,067
32,067

842
842

2,009,937
2,009,937

1,965,645
1,965,645

26,655
26,655 $ $

27,699
27,699 $ $

(1,044)
(1,044)

444,837
444,837

429,480
429,480

15,357
15,357

-

1,216,067
1,216,067

1,077,008
1,077,008

139,059
139,059

-

365,109
365,109

462,759
462,759

(97,650)
(97,650)

1,056
1,056

27,147
27,147

50,029
50,029

(22,882)
(22,882)

982
982

45,345
45,345

33,049
33,049

12,296
12,296

115,223
115,223

114,379
114,379

2,125,160
2,125,160

2,080,024
2,080,024

45,136
45,136

-

-

1,153,305
1,153,305

1,069,344
1,069,344

83,961
83,961

-

21,094
21,094

14,693
14,693

6,401
6,401

66,557
66,557

59,860
59,860

6,697
6,697

General Revenues
Revenues
General
Property taxes
taxes
Property
State aid
not restricted
restricted to
to specific
specific programs
programs
State
aid -- not

Total revenues
revenues
Total

-

Expenses
Expenses
Instruction
Instruction

1,153,305
1,153,305

1,069,344
1,069,344

Instructional resources
resources and
and media
media services
services
Instructional

21,094
21,094

14,693
14,693

Instructional staff
staff development
development
Instructional

66,557
66,557

59,860
59,860

-

-

-

-

5,354
5,354

4,241
4,241

1,113
1,113

23,267
23,267

3,663
3,663
8,487
8,487

-

Curriculum development
development
Curriculum

5,354
5,354

4,241
4,241

Instructional leadership
leadership
Instructional

26,930
26,930

23,267
23,267

-

-

26,930
26,930

132,668
132,668

124,181
124,181

-

-

132,668
132,668

124,181
124,181

49,789
49,789

50,166
50,166

-

-

49,789
49,789

50,166
50,166

-

-

School leadership
leadership
School
Guidance, counseling,
counseling, and
and evaluation
evaluation services
services
Guidance,
Social work
work services
services
Social
Health services
services
Health
Student
Student transportation
transportation
Food service
Food service
Co-curricular/extracurricular activities
Co-curricular/extracurricular activities
General administration
General administration
Plant maintenance and operations
Plant maintenance and operations
Security and monitoring services
Security and monitoring services
Data processing services
Data processing services
Community services
Community services
Interest and fiscal charges
Interest and fiscal charges
Juvenile justice alternative education program
Juvenile justice alternative education program
Tax reinvestment zone payments
Tax reinvestment zone payments
Tax appraisal and collection
Tax appraisal and collection
Food service
Food service
Other
Other
Total expenses
Total expenses
Change in net assets before transfers
Change in net assets before transfers
Transfers
Transfers
Change in net assets
Change in net assets
Beginning net assets
Beginning net assets
Change in beginning net assetsChange in beginning net assetsPrior Period Adjustment
Prior Period Adjustment
Ending net assets
Ending net assets

$
$

2,286
2,286

2,174
2,174

20,803
20,803
49,162
49,162

19,443
19,443
47,791
47,791

2,805
2,805
17,545
17,545
31,644
31,644
199,198
199,198
21,710
21,710
44,367
44,367
5,253
5,253
106,192
106,192
668
668
35,104
35,104
9,630
9,630

1,462
1,462
15,657
15,657
37,274
37,274
184,483
184,483
19,813
19,813
52,847
52,847
5,454
5,454
95,792
95,792
762
762
32,754
32,754

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

109,520
109,520
11,022
11,022
120,542
120,542
(6,163)
(6,163)
(13,200)
(13,200)
(19,363)
(19,363)
52,748
52,748

-

-

2,002,064
2,002,064

1,861,458
1,861,458

107,992
109,348
11,024
11,024
119,016
120,372

7,873
7,873
13,200
13,200
21,073
21,073
1,308,665
1,308,665

104,187
104,187
13,200
13,200
117,387
117,387
1,184,116
1,184,116

(3,793)
(5,149)
(13,200)
(13,200)
(16,993)
(18,349)
33,385
33,385

1,329,738 $
1,329,738 $

7,162
7,162
1,308,665
1,308,665
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$
$

-

-

16,392 $
15,036 $

(377)
(377)

2,286
2,286

2,174
2,174

112
112

20,803
20,803
49,162
49,162

19,443
19,443
47,791
47,791

1,360
1,360
1,371
1,371

2,805
2,805
17,545
17,545
31,644
31,644
199,198
199,198
21,710
21,710
44,367
44,367
5,253
5,253
106,192
106,192
668
668
35,104
35,104
9,630
9,630
107,992
109,348
11,024
11,024
2,121,080
2,122,436

1,462
1,462
15,657
15,657
37,274
37,274
184,483
184,483
19,813
19,813
52,847
52,847
5,454
5,454
95,792
95,792
762
762
32,754
32,754
109,520
109,520
11,022
11,022
1,982,000
1,982,000

1,343
1,343
1,888
1,888
(5,630)
(5,630)
14,715
14,715
1,897
1,897
(8,480)
(8,480)
(201)
(201)
10,400
10,400
(94)
(94)
2,350
2,350
9,630
9,630
(1,528)
(172)
2
2
139,080
140,436

4,080
2,724

98,024
98,024

(93,944)
(95,300)

4,080
2,724
1,342,050
1,342,050

98,024
98,024
1,236,864
1,236,864

(93,944)
(95,300)
105,186
105,186

7,162
7,162
33,385 $ 1,346,130 $
1,342,050 $
33,385 $ 1,344,774 $
1,342,050 $

(7,162)
(7,162)
4,080
2,724

The following table presents the cost of the District’s largest governmental functions as well as their related net
cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was
funded by local tax dollars, state revenues, and other miscellaneous general revenues.
Net Cost of Selected District Functions
(in million of dollars)

Instruction
Plant maintenance & operations
School leadership
Interest & fiscal charges

Total Cost of Services
2009
2008
1,153.3
1,069.3
199.2
184.5
132.7
124.2
106.2
95.8

Net Cost of Services
2009
2008
934.2
864.6
189.7
177.9
122.4
114.7
106.2
95.8

Total Cost for Select Functions
(in millions of dollars)

Instruction
2008
Plant maintenance & operations
2009

School leadership

$0

$100 $200 $300 $400 $500 $600 $700 $800 $900 $1,000 $1,100 $1,200

Interest & fiscal charges

Net Cost for Select Functions
(in millions of dollars)

Instruction

2008

Plant maintenance & operations

School leadership

2009
$0

$100 $200 $300 $400 $500 $600 $700 $800 $900 $1,000
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Interest & fiscal charges

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL
OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS
The District's
District's accounting
accounting records
records for
for general
general governmental
governmental operations
operations are
are maintained
maintained
Governmental Funds The
on
Texas
on a
a modified
modified accrual
accrual basis
basis as
as prescribed
prescribed by
by the
the Financial Accountability System Resource Guide, Texas
Education Agency,
Agency, with
with the
the revenues
revenues being
being recorded
recorded when
when available
available and
and measurable
measurable to
to finance
finance expenditures
expenditures
Education
of the
fiscal period.
period. Expenditures
Expenditures are
are recorded
recorded when
when services
services or
or goods
goods are
are received
received and
and the
the fund
fund liabilities
liabilities are
are
of
the fiscal
incurred. The
The general
general governmental
governmental operations
operations include
include the
the following
following major
major funds:
funds: General,
General, Special
Special Revenue,
Revenue,
incurred.
Debt Service,
Service, Capital
Renovation, and
the other
other nonmajor
nonmajor governmental
governmental fund
fund (Public
(Public Facility
Facility Corporation).
Corporation).
Debt
Capital Renovation,
and the
Revenues
billion for
for the
the fiscal
fiscal year
year ended
ended June
June 30,
30, 2009,
2009, an
an
Revenues for
for general
general governmental
governmental functions
functions totaled
totaled $2.001
$2.001 billion
increase of
of 2.04
2.04 percent
from the
prior fiscal
fiscal year.
year. Property
Property taxes
taxes were
were the
the largest
largest source
source of
of revenue
revenue received
received
increase
percent from
the prior
by the
the District
District increasing
increasing by
by 11.5
11.5 percent.
percent. Property
Property taxes
taxes are
are part
part of
of the
the District’s
District’s target
target revenue
revenue funding
funding
by
th
system established
by House
House Bill
79th
Texas Legislature.
Legislature. The
The District
District earns
earns $5,102
$5,102 per
per weighted
weighted
system
established by
Bill 1
1 of
of the
the 79
Texas
average
daily attendance
attendance (“WADA”).
(“WADA”). The
District collects
average daily
The difference
difference between
between what
what the
the District
collects in
in property
property taxes
taxes and
and
the target
As property
property taxes
taxes increase,
increase, the
the amount
amount of
of
the
target revenue
revenue per
per WADA
WADA is
is made
made up
up through
through state
state funding.
funding. As
funding
from the
state decreases.
decreases.
funding from
the state

Expenditures
for general
governmental operations
totaled $2.115
$2.115 billion
billion during
during fiscal
fiscal year
year 2009,
2009, an
an increase
increase of
of
Expenditures for
general governmental
operations totaled
6.17
percent from
from fiscal
fiscal year
year 2008.
2008. Increases
Increases in
in expenditures
expenditures occurred
occurred in
in the
the functional
functional areas
areas of
of instruction,
instruction,
6.17 percent
instructional
resources and
and media
media services,
services, instructional
instructional staff
staff development,
food
instructional resources
development, student
student transportation,
transportation, food
services, plant
and interest
interest and
and fiscal
charges.
services,
plant maintenance
maintenance and
and operations,
operations, and
fiscal charges.
The
governmental funds
funds reported
reported a
a combined
combined fund
fund balance
balance of
of $1.206
$1.206 billion,
billion, a
a decrease
decrease of
of $86.5
$86.5 million.
million. The
The
The governmental
net
decrease of
the combined
combined fund
fund balances
balances was
was comprised
comprised of
of a
a fund
fund balance
balance decrease
decrease in
in the
the General
General Fund,
Fund,
net decrease
of the
Special
Revenue Fund,
Fund, Capital
Capital Renovation
Renovation Fund,
Fund, and
and the
the nonmajor
nonmajor governmental
governmental fund
fund of
of 46.3
46.3 million,
million, $109
$109
Special Revenue
thousand,
$41.4 million,
million, and
and $2
$2 million,
million, respectively,
respectively, and
and an
an increase
increase in
in the
the Debt
Debt Service
Service Fund
Fund of
of $3.3
$3.3 million.
million.
thousand, $41.4
Out of
constitutes unreserved, undesignated fund balance. The
The
Out
of the
the combined
combined fund
fund balances,
balances, $250
$250 million
million constitutes
remainder of
remainder
of the
the fund
fund balance
balance is
is reserved
reserved or
or designated
designated to
to indicate
indicate that
that itit is
is not
not available
available for
for new
new spending
spending
because
has already
already been
been committed.
committed.
because itit has
The
Fund is
is the
the primary
primary operating
operating fund
fund of
of the
the District.
District. The
The fund
fund balance
balance of
of the
the General
General Fund
Fund
The General
General Fund
decreased
$46.3 million
million during
during the
the fiscal
fiscal year
year primarily
primarily due
due to
to increases
increases in
in expenditures
expenditures and
and other
other financing
financing
decreased $46.3
uses.
At the
the end
end of
of the
the current
current fiscal
fiscal year,
year, unreserved,
unreserved, undesignated
undesignated fund
fund balance
balance of
of the
the general
general fund
fund was
was
uses. At
$240.6
million. Unreserved,
Unreserved, undesignated
undesignated fund
fund balance
balance represents
represents 15.7
15.7 percent
percent of
of the
the total
total general
general fund
fund
$240.6 million.
expenditures,
while total
total fund
fund balance
balance represents
represents 31.1
31.1 percent
percent of
of that
that same
same amount.
amount.
expenditures, while
The
Revenue Fund
Fund accounts
accounts for
for all
all grants
grants received
received by
by the
the District.
District. The
The ending
ending fund
fund balance
balance of
of $9.3
$9.3
The Special
Special Revenue
million
is reserved
reserved for
for E-rate
E-rate activities.
activities. The
The revenues
revenues from
from state
state and
federal sources
sources totaled
totaled $254
$254 million
million for
for
million is
and federal
the
current year,
an increase
increase of
of 9
9 percent
percent from
from the
the prior
prior fiscal
fiscal year
year
the current
year, an
The
Service Fund
Fund has
has a
total fund
fund balance
balance of
of $107.5
$107.5 million
The Debt
Debt Service
a total
million all
all of
of which
which is
is reserved
reserved for
for the
the payment
payment of
of
debt
service. The
The net
net increase
increase in
debt service.
in fund
fund balance
balance during
during the
the period
period in
in the
the debt
debt service
service fund
fund was
was $3.3
$3.3 million.
million.
The
debt service
service payments
payments in
January/July, February/August,
February/August, and
The District
District makes
makes semi-annual
semi-annual debt
in December/June,
December/June, January/July,
and
March/September
of each
each year.
Debt service
service payments
payments for
for the
ended June
June 30,
30, 2009
2009 included
March/September of
year. Debt
the period
period ended
included all
all
scheduled
payments/accruals due
due within
within 30
30 days
days of
of year
year end.
end.
scheduled payments/accruals
The
Renovation Fund
Fund has
has a
a total
total fund
fund balance
balance of
of $610.3
$610.3 million.
million. The
The majority,
majority, $410
$410 million
million dollars,
dollars, is
is
The Capital
Capital Renovation
designated
for future
future construction
construction while
million is
The remaining
designated for
while $200.2
$200.2 million
is reserved
reserved for
for encumbrances.
encumbrances. The
remaining $295
$295
thousand
is designated
designated for
for arbitrage.
arbitrage. The
The fund
thousand is
fund balance
balance decreased
decreased by
by $41.4
$41.4 million
million as
as a
a result
result of
of increased
increased
commitments
current Rebuild
Rebuild HISD
HISD 2007
2007 bond
bond program.
commitments for
for the
the current
program.
The
Renovation Fund
Fund –
has a
a total
total fund
fund balance
balance of
million, all
The Capital
Capital Renovation
– Public
Public Facility
Facility Corporation
Corporation has
of $1.3
$1.3 million,
all of
of which
which
is
for construction
construction of
of the
the food
food service
service warehouse
warehouse facility.
facility. The
The fund
fund balance
balance decreased
decreased by
million
is designated
designated for
by $2
$2 million
as
a result
result of
of other
other financing
financing uses
uses for
for the
the food
food service
service warehouse
facility.
as a
warehouse facility.
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Proprietary Funds
Proprietary
The District maintains both enterprise funds and internal service funds. Information is
Funds
presented separately in the proprietary fund statement of net assets and in the proprietary fund statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets for the Food Service Fund, which is considered to be a
major fund. Net assets in the Food Service Fund as of June 30, 2009 were $747 thousand. Of this amount,
$21.3 million represented the investment in capital assets, which is offset by ($20.5 million) in unrestricted net
assets. For the fiscal year, net assets decreased by $18.3
$16.9 million. The District is developing plans to increase
the
Food Service Fund’s revenues and decrease the program’s operating expenses.
WKH)RRG6HUYLFH)XQG¶VUHYHQXHVDQGGHFUHDVHWKHSURJUDP¶VRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHV
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Over the course of the year, the District revised its budget several times. As a result,
result, actual
actual expenditures
expenditures were
were
$109.1 million less than the appropriated budgeted amounts which resulted in positive variances. These
variances are the result of salaries, benefits, performance pay, consultants, and contracted services being
budgeted at a greater amount than expenditures. Following were the key variances:
$39.4 million resulted from instruction (staffing)
$25.5 million plant maintenance and operations (contracted services)
$9.8 million data processing services
$7.4 million co-curricular/extracurricular activities
$7.1 million general administration
Staffing is budgeted at one hundred percent of actual salary. Budget amounts for vacant positions are
monitored to ensure that only limited revisions are allowed for departments. Schools have a more flexible
revision policy but cannot take excess salary budgets for non-salary uses.
The final budgeted amount for revenues was $1.543 billion. Actual revenues exceeded the revised budget by
$196 thousand. This positive variance was mainly attributed to miscellaneous local revenue exceeding
budgeted amounts by $196 thousand.
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
CAPITAL ASSETS
The District had invested $2.318 billion, net of depreciation, in a broad range of capital assets, including land,
buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, and vehicles. This amount represents a net increase
(including additions, deductions, and depreciation) of $24.3 million over last year.
District's Capital Assets
(net
depreciation,
in thousands
of dollars)
(net of of
depreciation,
in thousands
of dollars)
Governmental
Activities
Land

$

Buildings and Improvements

2009
204,438

$

2008
203,526

Business-type
Activities
$

2009
-

$

2008
-

Total
Percentage
Change

Total
$

2009
204,438 $

2008
203,526

2009-2008
.45%

1,845,642

1,758,060

12,692

13,030

1,858,334

1,771,090

4.93%

Vehicles

33,281

28,132

266

706

33,547

28,838

16.33%

Furniture and equipment

57,732

72,968

8,205

9,580

65,937

82,548

-20.12%

207,851

-24.96%

2,293,853

1.06%

Construction in progress
Total

155,841
$

2,296,934

207,851
$

2,270,537

126
$

21,289

-

$

23,316

155,967
$

2,318,223 $

The District opened a Ninth Grade Academy at the Sam Houston High School site and the Energize for
Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (E-STEM) Academy on the upper level floor of Yates
High School. As of June 30, 2009, the District had fully funded construction commitments of $165,885,939.
More detailed information
about the District’s capital assets is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements.
LQIRUPDWLRQDERXWWKH'LVWULFW¶VFDSLWDODVVHWVLVSUHVHQWHGLQ1RWHWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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L
ong T
erm Deb
Long
Term
Debtt

As
30,, 20
2009,
District
had
bonded
debt
outstanding
The
District
A
s of JJune
une 30
09, tthe
he Di
strict h
ad ttotal
otal b
onded d
ebt o
utstanding of $1.917
$1.917 billion.
billion. T
he Di
strict debt
debt ttotals
otals
iincluded
ncluded $
217.9 m
illion iin
n Variable
Variable Rat
eB
onds o
utstanding a
iscal yyear
ear e
nd. T
he rratio
atio of ne
neral b
onded
$217.9
million
Rate
Bonds
outstanding
att ffiscal
end.
The
nett ge
general
bonded
de
bt to as
sessed vvaluation
aluation an
d the am
ount of bo
nded de
bt pe
tudent are us
eful indicators
indicators of the Di
strict's
debt
assessed
and
amount
bonded
debt
perr sstudent
useful
District's
debt
position.
This
presented
General
Bonded
Debtt to A
Assessed
Values
KH Vschedule
de
bt p
osition. Th
is data is S
UHVHQWHG Lin
Q Wthe
FKHGXOH ³“Ratio
5DWLo of Net G
eneral B
onded Deb
ssessed V
alues
and
Nett B
Bonded
Debtt per Student”
and
decrease
the
nett bo
bonded
an
d Ne
onded Deb
Student´ Lin
Q Wthe
KH Vstatistical
WDWLVWLcal ssection
ection an
d rreflects
eflects a de
crease iin
n th
e rratio
atio of ne
nded
debt
assessed
de
bt to as
sessed value
value of 1.67
1.67 percent,
percent, as compared
compared to 1.97
1.97 percent
percent last
last year.
year.
T
he District
District reduced
reduced to
tal variable
variable d
ebt b
hoosing tto
o redeem
redeem $545,000
$545,000 of Variable
Variable Rate
Rate Bonds
Bonds Series
Series 2004
2004
The
total
debt
byy cchoosing
on JJune
une 1
5, 20
09, ffollowed
ollowed by
by an a
dditional $1
8,550,000 m
ade via
via a
n iirrevocable
rrevocable payment
payment tto
o the bo
nd tr
ustee
15,
2009,
additional
$18,550,000
made
an
bond
trustee
25,, 20
2009
having
bond
on JJune
une 25
09 ha
ving a bo
nd rredemption
edemption date
date of July
July 1, 2009.
2009. The
The Variable
Variable Rate
Rate Bonds,
Bonds, Series
Series 2004
2004 were
were
weekly
period
15,, 20
2009.
cconverted
onverted tto
o a week
ly tterm
erm rrate
ate p
eriod on JJune
une 15
09. Variable
Variable rate
rate debt
debt as a percentage
percentage of total
total bonded
bonded
debt
outstanding
11.4%.
de
bt ou
tstanding iis
s 11
.4%.
In JJune
une 20
09, the
the D
istrict reduced
reduced outstanding
outstanding de
bt tthrough
hrough the op
en m
arket purchase
purchase of previously
previously issued
issued
2009,
District
debt
open
market
Limited
Tax
School
Building
Bonds,
and
Tax
Bonds,
Series
2005B.
total
Li
mited T
ax S
chool B
uilding B
onds, Series
Series 2005
2005 an
d Limited
Limited T
ax Refunding
Refunding B
onds, S
eries 20
05B. A tot
al of
$29,155,000
the
bonds
were
purchased
and
$2
9,155,000 of th
e bo
nds wer
ep
urchased a
nd ccancelled.
ancelled.

April
2009,
District
$14,160,000
Limited
Bonds,
Series
2009
with
premium
In A
pril 20
09, the Di
strict iissued
ssued $
14,160,000 iin
n Li
mited Tax
Tax Refunding
Refunding B
onds, S
eries 2
009 wi
th a prem
ium of
$16,984,463.
The
bonds
both
$1
6,984,463. T
he bo
nds iincluded
ncluded b
oth ccurrent
urrent iinterest
nterest ((“CIB”)
³CIB´) and
and capital
capital appreciation
appreciation (“CAB”)
(³CAB´) bonds.
bonds. The
The
tot
al proc
eeds, Oless
HVV Urelated
HODWHG Lissuance
VVXDQFH Fcosts
R V WV  D
QG X
QGHUZULWHU¶V G
LVFRXQW , were
were ut
ilized ffor
or rrefunding
efunding a po
rtion of
total
proceeds,
and
underwriter’s
discount,
utilized
portion
Series
1999A
bonds.
the S
eries 19
99A bo
nds.
Interest
earnings
on
proceeds
15,
arbitrage
Int
erest e
arnings o
n proc
eeds from
from debt
debt iissued
ssued ssince
ince May
May 1
5, 1989,
1989, are subject
subject to arb
itrage rregulations
egulations
Federal
Tax
Reform
Act
1986.
District
designated
part
ccontained
ontained iin
n the F
ederal T
ax Ref
orm A
ct of 19
86. The
The Di
strict rrecords
ecords the lliability
iability as a de
signated pa
ts
rt of iits
un
reserved ffund
und b
alance, iiff ne
eded, o
na
na
nnual ba
sis. A
s of JJune
une 3
0, 2
009, arbitrage
arbitrage rrebate
ebate iin
n th
e am
ount
unreserved
balance,
needed,
on
an
annual
basis.
As
30,
2009,
the
amount
of $
774,768 h
as be
en iincluded
ncluded as pa
rt of the un
reserved ffund
und b
alance on the G
overnmental F
unds B
alance
$774,768
has
been
part
unreserved
balance
Governmental
Funds
Balance
Sheet.
S
heet.
October
2008,
District
In O
ctober 2
008, tthe
he Di
strict issued
issued $14,500,000
$14,500,000 in
in Contractual
Contractual Obligations,
Obligations, Series
Series 2008
2008 with
with a premium
premium of
$355,816.
Contractual
obligations,
balance
$63,600,000,
are
purpose
$3
55,816. Cont
ractual o
bligations, with
with a rremaining
emaining ba
lance of $
63,600,000, a
re iissued
ssued ffor
or the pu
rpose of
acquiring
personal
property
assets
and
authorized
pursuant
State
Texas,
ac
quiring pe
rsonal prop
erty as
sets an
d are au
thorized pu
rsuant to the llaws
aws of the S
tate of T
exas, iincluding
ncluding tthe
he
Public
Property
Finance
Act,
Section
271.001
off th
the
Texas
Local
Government
Code.
P
ublic P
roperty F
inance A
ct, S
ection 27
1.001 o
eT
exas Lo
cal G
overnment Co
de.
More
detailed
about
District’s
debt
presented
Note
8to
0RUHG
HWDLOHGLinformation
QIRUPDWLRQD
ERXWWthe
KH'
LVWULFW¶Vlong
ORQJWterm
HUPG
HEWLis
VS
UHVHQWHGLin
Q1
RWH
WRWthe
KHIfinancial
LQDQFLDOstatements.
VWDWHPHQWV
ECONOMIC FACTORS
FACTORS AND
AND NEXT
N(;7YEAR’S
<($5¶6BUDGETS
%8'*(76AND
$ND RATES
RATES
ECONOMIC

Increases
2009-10
Fund
$88.8
million.
These
the
Increases ffor
or the 2
009-10 General
General Fun
d operating
operating budget
budget total
total $
88.8 m
illion. T
hese iincreases
ncreases iinclude
nclude th
e
major
ffollowing
ollowing m
ajor factors:
factors:
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

$30.5
million
package
illion ssalary
alary pa
ckage
$30.5 m
$9 m
million
new
buses
every
even
ery ev
en ffiscal
iscal yyear)
ear)
or ne
w bu
ses ((occurs
occurs ev
illion ffor
$10.6
million
due
enrollment
tudent en
rollment
illion d
ue tto
o iincreased
ncreased sstudent
$10.6 m
$16
million
transfers
the
Capital
Renovation
Pay-As-You-Go
program
debt
pital Ren
ovation P
ay-As-You-Go progr
am and
and ttransfers
ransfers to the
the d
ebt
illion ffor
or tr
ansfers to th
e Ca
$16 m
service
und.
service ffund.
$4.6
million
TIRZ
participation
illion ffor
or T
IRZ pa
rticipation
$4.6 m
$7 m
million
or TRS
TRS on-behalf
on-behalf of payments
payments
illion ffor
$3.5
million
TRS
above
minimum
inimum
illion ffor
or T
RS ab
ove sstate
tate m
$3.5 m
$7.6
million
otherr iincreases
as
obligations,
property,
auto
and
s ccontractual
ontractual o
bligations, p
roperty, au
to a
nd lliability
iability iinsurance,
nsurance,
illion ffor
or othe
ncreases ssuch
uch a
$7.6 m
water,
and
operating
water, ccharter
erating ccosts.
osts.
harter sschools,
chools, a
nd other
other op

Also
budget
reductions of $147.9
$147.9 million
million primarily
primarily due
due to the
the District
District no longer
longer
A
lso iincluded
ncluded in
in the operating
operating bu
dget were
were reductions
being
property
$126.9
million.
itself reduced
reduced the District’s
DLVWULFW¶V budget
EXGJHW by
E\ 
 P
LOOLRQ Other
Other
be
ing cconsidered
onsidered pro
perty wealthy,
wealthy, which
which itself
amount
off $2
$21
million
primarily
electricity,
education
ncluded rreductions
eductions prim
arily due
due tto
oe
lectricity, sspecial
pecial ed
ucation rreerreductions
eductions iin
n tthe
he am
ount o
1m
illion iincluded
organization,
and
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ization, cconsultants
onsultants a
nd d
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CONTACTING THE DISTR,&7¶6),1$1&,$/0$1$GEMENT
DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general RYHUYLHZ
overview RI
of WKH
the 'LVWULFW¶V
District’s ILQDQFHV
finances DQG
and WR
to demonstrate
money itLW
JHQHUDO
GHPRQVWUDWH the
WKH District’s
'LVWULFW¶V accountability
DFFRXQWDELOLW\ for
IRU the
WKH PRQH\
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Chief
Financial Officer, at 4400 West 18th Street, Houston, Texas 77092, or call (713) 556-6600.
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HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
JUNE 30, 2009 AND ANALYSIS

(Unaudited)

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
$
1,957,739 $
357,947 $
2,315,686
1,353,146,422
10,556,310
1,363,702,732
Our discussion Investments
and analysis of Houston Independent
School District’s
(the “District”)
financial performance
Delinquent taxes receivable - net of
provides an overview
of
the
District’s
financial
activities
for
the
fiscal
year
ended
June
30,
2009. It should be
estimated uncollectible taxes
112,535,440
112,535,440
read in conjunction
withreceivable
the transmittal letter at the front148,526,471
of this report and
the basic financial
statements which
Accounts
2,507,450
151,033,921
follow this section.
Internal balances
22,250,777
(22,250,777)
Inventories
2,686,498
7,102,060
9,788,558
OtherDiscussion
assets
11,101,319
11,101,319
The Management’s
and Analysis is a combination
of both government-wide
financial statements
Land
204,437,823
204,437,823
and fund financial
statements.
Construction in progress
155,841,017
126,318
155,967,335
Buildings and improvements
2,656,536,881
13,275,766
2,669,812,647
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Furniture and equipment
265,921,568
21,762,536
287,684,104
Vehicles
90,050,034
4,258,897
94,308,931
(1,075,853,166)
(18,134,101)
(1,093,987,267)
Accumulated depreciation
On the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $1.346 billion.
Total assets
3,949,138,823
19,562,406
3,968,701,229

Of this amount, $627.4 million is unrestricted. Total net assets of the District increased from $1.342 billion in
fiscal year 2008 LIABILITIES
to $1.346 billion in fiscal year 2009, an increase of approximately $4.1 million. Total revenues
46,658,365
3,187,402
49,845,767
increased $45.1 Accounts
million payable
from $2.08 billion in fiscal year 2008
to $2.125 billion
in fiscal year
2009.
Accrued salaries and related expenses

105,743,024

720,610

106,463,634

Other liabilities
49,703,667
49,703,667
The District’s governmental
funds financial statements reported
a combined
ending fund
balance in fiscal year
Unearned revenues
12,194,165
137,046
12,331,211
2009 of $1.206 billion.
Of
this
amount,
$45
million
is
reserved
in
the
General
Fund
for
restricted
Interest payable
46,220,464
46,220,464 purposes and
$240.6 million isLong-term
unreserved,
undesignated in the General Fund and is available for spending at the District’s
liabilities:
Portion due orending
payable fund
within one
year: of the District decreased $86.5 million from $1.292 billion in
discretion. The combined
balance
Bonds
35,669,547
fiscal year 2008. This
is payable
due to increases in expenditures35,669,547
for all instructional
related services.

Contractual obligations payable
11,245,000
11,245,000
Notes payable
5,025,000
5,025,000
The District prepared
a budget for the 2008-09 fiscal year8,199,479
that was based- upon reducing
expenditures by $35
Premium/discount
8,199,479
million which included
reductions
for ofloss
enrollment, district-wide
operating
Deferred
loss on refunding
bondsof student (521,849)
(521,849)costs, property
Lease purchases
78,596
78,596 for the budget
insurance, miscellaneous
central office departments, and transfers
to other
funds. Increases
payable
28,962,539
totaled $146 millionAccretion
primarily
due to the District becoming
property wealthy
requiring 28,962,539
a recapture payment to
Compensated absences payable
3,148,427
192,226
3,340,653
the Texas Education
Agency
of $126 million to be recorded
as both a revenue
and expenditure
Claims
payable
28,021,788
28,021,788 to the District.
However, at the end
of due
theorfiscal
year
was no longer property wealthy and therefore, the recapture
Portion
payable
afterthe
one District
year:
Bonds payableOther operating expenditures
1,882,004,770
1,882,004,770
payment was not necessary.
increased in- the amount
of $56 million including
obligations
payable
52,355,000 Institute,
- contract charter
52,355,000
salary and benefitsContractual
increases,
addition
of the Aspiring Principals
schools, appraisal
Notes payable
71,020,000
71,020,000
district fees, addition
of the Performance Management
department, addition
of the
Communications and
Premium/discount
44,524,933
44,524,933
Publications department
(per unit allocations)
Deferredand
lossone-time
on refundingPUA
of bonds
(5,571,529)funding to
- schools.
(5,571,529)
Lease purchases
40,839
40,839
Arbitrage
rebate payable
774,768
774,768
OVERVIEW OF THE
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Accretion payable
158,562,421
158,562,421
Compensated absences payable
27,856,564
289,336
28,145,900
This discussion andClaims
analysis
is intended to serve as an introduction
to the- District’s basic
financial statements.
payable
7,484,559
7,484,559
The District’s basic financial
statements are comprised
of three components:
government-wide financial
Total liabilities
2,619,400,537
4,526,620 1) 2,623,927,157

statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
NETsupplementary
ASSETS
contains required
information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic
Invested
in capital assets, net of related debt
606,423,128
21,289,416
627,712,544
financial statements
themselves.
Restricted for:
Contractual obligations
Government-Wide
Financial
Statements
Debt
service
Unrestricted
Totalservices
net assets are reported in
All of the District’s

16,007,343
16,007,343
75,056,562
75,056,562
632,251,253
(6,253,630)
625,997,623
$ 1,329,738,286 $ financial
15,035,786
$ 1,344,774,072
government-wide
statements,
including

the
instruction,
student support services, student transportation, general administration, school leadership, facilities acquisition
and constructionThe
and
food services. Property taxes, state and federal aid, and investment earnings finance
notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
most of the activities. Additionally, all capital and debt financing activities are reported here.
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers a broad overview of the District’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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1,344,774,072

1,058,019,228
158,048,285
365,108,678
20,562,533
27,146,838
24,782,382
1,653,667,944
2,723,710
1,342,050,362

(18,462,849)
994,006
11,258,139
(6,210,704)
(1,650,944,234)

(934,237,522)
(19,678,075)
(15,870,871)
(4,690,155)
(18,584,485)
(122,418,380)
(37,224,009)
(1,177,650)
(17,813,042)
(28,706,181)
(2,663,145)
(12,999,598)
(26,637,997)
(189,652,518)
(19,854,364)
(38,613,040)
(2,318,722)
(106,192,056)
(667,494)
(35,104,450)
(9,629,776)
(1,644,733,530)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

1,058,019,228
158,048,285
365,108,678
20,562,533
26,927,592
23,940,145
13,200,000
1,665,806,461
21,072,931
1,308,665,355

(1,644,733,530)

218,250,245 $ (934,237,522) $
1,415,460
(19,678,075)
50,685,831
(15,870,871)
663,856
(4,690,155)
8,345,564
(18,584,485)
10,249,557
(122,418,380)
12,565,299
(37,224,009)
1,108,074
(1,177,650)
2,990,288
(17,813,042)
20,455,324
(28,706,181)
141,789
(2,663,145)
3,934,108
(12,999,598)
5,006,243
(26,637,997)
9,089,195
(189,652,518)
1,855,517
(19,854,364)
5,754,279
(38,613,040)
2,934,232
(2,318,722)
(106,192,056)
(667,494)
(35,104,450)
(9,629,776)
355,444,861 (1,644,733,530)

Governmental
Activities

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

15,035,786 $

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is a combination of both government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements.

$ 1,329,738,286 $

219,246
842,237
(13,200,000)
(12,138,517)
(18,349,221)
33,385,007

(18,462,849)
994,006
11,258,139
(6,210,704)
(6,210,704)

$

Business-type
Activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Total

Our discussion and analysis of Houston Independent School District’s (the “District”) financial performance
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. It should be
read in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the basic financial statements which
follow this section.

78,070,444
11,321,909
89,392,353
444,837,214

Program Revenues
Operating
Charges for
Grants and
Services
Contributions

HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

On the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $1.346 billion.
Of this amount, $627.4 million is unrestricted. Total net assets of the District increased from $1.342 billion in
fiscal year 2008 to $1.346 billion in fiscal year 2009, an increase of approximately $4.1 million. Total revenues
increased $45.1 million from $2.08 billion in fiscal year 2008 to $2.125 billion in fiscal year 2009.

Net assets—ending

Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
Instruction
Instructional resources and media services
Instructional staff development
Curriculum development
Instructional leadership
School leadership
Guidance, counseling, and evaluation services
Social work services
Health services
Student transportation
Food service
Co-curricular/extracurricular activities
General administration
Plant maintenance and operations
Security and monitoring services
Data processing services
Community services
Interest and fiscal charges
Juvenile justice alternative education program
Tax reinvestment zone payments
Tax appraisal and collection
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Food service
Business development
Medicaid
Total business-type activities
Total activities

Expenses

The District prepared a budget for the 2008-09 fiscal year that was based upon reducing expenditures by $35
million which included reductions for loss of student enrollment, district-wide operating costs, property
insurance, miscellaneous central office departments, and transfers to other funds. Increases for the budget
totaled $146 million primarily due to the District becoming property wealthy requiring a recapture payment to
the Texas Education Agency of $126 million to be recorded as both a revenue and expenditure to the District.
However, at the end of the fiscal year the District was no longer property wealthy and therefore, the recapture
payment was not necessary. Other operating expenditures increased in the amount of $56 million including
salary and benefits increases, addition of the Aspiring Principals Institute, contract charter schools, appraisal
district fees, addition of the Performance Management department, addition of the Communications and
Publications department and one-time PUA (per unit allocations) funding to schools.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
contains required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.
Government-Wide Financial Statements

All of the District’s services are reported in the government-wide financial statements, including instruction,
student support services, student transportation, general administration, school leadership, facilities acquisition
and construction and food services. Property taxes, state and federal aid, and investment earnings finance
most of the activities. Additionally, all capital and debt financing activities are reported here.
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers a broad overview of the District’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

12,814,355
10,588,704
1,366,900
24,769,959
26,655,254 $
109,347,648
9,594,698
1,430,670
120,373,016
$ 2,122,436,702 $

General revenues:
Taxes:
Maintenance & operations property taxes
Debt service property taxes
State aid - not restricted to specific programs
Tax increment reinvestment zone
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
Net assets—beginning

817,212 $
611,688
456,395
1,885,295
$ 1,153,304,979 $
21,093,535
66,556,702
5,354,011
26,930,049
132,667,937
49,789,308
2,285,724
20,803,330
49,161,505
2,804,934
17,545,394
31,644,240
199,198,108
21,709,881
44,367,319
5,252,954
106,192,056
667,494
35,104,450
9,629,776
2,002,063,686

The District’s governmental funds financial statements reported a combined ending fund balance in fiscal year
2009 of $1.206 billion. Of this amount, $45 million is reserved in the General Fund for restricted purposes and
$240.6 million is unreserved, undesignated in the General Fund and is available for spending at the District’s
discretion. The combined ending fund balance of the District decreased $86.5 million from $1.292 billion in
fiscal year 2008. This is due to increases in expenditures for all instructional related services.

20

21

22

23

HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
MANAGEMENT’S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
(Unaudited)
JUNE 30, 2009

Business-type
Activities-Enterprise
Funds
Our discussion and analysis of Houston Independent
School District’s
(the “District”)
financial performance
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Governmental
It should be
Food
Nonmajor
Activities
read in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front
of this report
and the basic financial statements
which
Service
Enterprise
Internal
Service
follow this section.

Fund
Fund
Totals
Fund
ASSETS
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is a combination of both government-wide financial statements
Current assets:
and fund financial statements.
Cash and cash equivalents
$
90,974 $
266,973 $
357,947 $
99,025
Investments
185,638
10,370,672
10,556,310
106,597,880
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Receivables
343,255
2,164,195
2,507,450
316,549
Due from other funds
559,636
559,636
5,920,269
On
the government-wide financial statements, the assets
of the District- exceeded liabilities
by $1.346 billion.
Accrued interest
440,265
OfInventories
this amount, $627.4 million is unrestricted. Total net
assets
of
the
District
increased
from
in
7,102,060
7,102,060 $1.342 billion
fiscal
year
2008
to $1.346 billion in fiscal year 2009, an7,721,927
increase of approximately
$4.1
million. Total 113,373,988
revenues
Total
current
assets
13,361,476
21,083,403

increased $45.1 million from $2.08 billion in fiscal year 2008 to $2.125 billion in fiscal year 2009.

Noncurrent assets:
The
District’s
governmental funds financial statements13,275,766
reported a combined
ending 13,275,766
fund balance in fiscal558,545
year
Buildings
and improvements
2009
of $1.206
billion. Of this amount, $45 million is reserved
Fund for126,318
restricted purposes
Construction
in process
126,318 in the General
- and
$240.6
million
is unreserved, undesignated in the General
Fund and is
available for21,762,536
spending at the District’s
Furniture
and equipment
21,643,328
119,208
767,252
Vehicles
4,258,897
128,947
discretion.
The combined ending fund balance of the4,258,897
District decreased
$86.5 million
from $1.292 billion
in
Less accumulated
(18,038,913)
(95,188)related(18,134,101)
(778,748)
fiscal
year 2008.depreciation
This is due to increases in expenditures
for all instructional
services.
Total noncurrent assets
21,265,396
24,020
21,289,416
675,996
Total assets
42,372,819
114,049,984
The District
prepared a budget for the 2008-09 fiscal 28,987,323
year that was 13,385,496
based upon reducing
expenditures
by $35

million which included reductions for loss of student enrollment, district-wide operating costs, property

LIABILITIES
insurance, miscellaneous central office departments, and transfers to other funds. Increases for the budget
Current
totaledliabilities:
$146 million primarily due to the District becoming property wealthy requiring a recapture payment to
Accounts payable
1,452,270
3,187,402
4,442,925
the
Texas Education Agency of $126 million to be recorded
as both a1,735,132
revenue and expenditure
to the District.
Due to other funds
25,543,688
25,543,688
400,605
However, at the end of the fiscal year the District was no longer property wealthy and therefore, the recapture
Deferred revenues
137,046
137,046
payment was not necessary. Other operating expenditures increased in the amount of $56 million including
Accrued salaries payable
691,219
29,391
720,610
395,691
salary
and benefits increases, addition of the Aspiring Principals
Institute,
contract charter
schools, appraisal
Compensated absences payable
171,053
21,173
192,226
district
fees, addition of the Performance Management
department, -addition of the- Communications
and
Claims and judgments payable
28,021,788
Publications
department
and
one-time
PUA
(per
unit
allocations)
funding
to
schools.
Total current liabilities
27,995,276
1,785,696
29,780,972
33,261,009
Noncurrent liabilities:
OVERVIEW
THE payable
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Compensated OF
absences
245,431
43,905
289,336
847,318
Claims and judgments payable
7,484,559
This
discussion
analysis is intended to serve as an 245,431
introduction to the
District’s basic
financial statements.
Total
noncurrent and
liabilities
43,905
289,336
8,331,877
The District’s
basic financial statements are comprised
of three components:
1) 30,070,308
government-wide 41,592,886
financial
Total liabilities
28,240,707
1,829,601

statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
and other supplementary information in addition to the basic

NET
ASSETS
contains
required supplementary information
Invested
in capital
assets themselves.
financial
statements
Unrestricted
Total net assets Financial Statements
Government-Wide

$

21,265,396
(20,518,780)
746,616 $

24,020
11,531,875
11,555,895

21,289,416
(8,986,905)
12,302,511

$

675,996
71,781,102
72,457,098

All of the District’s services are reported in the government-wide financial statements, including instruction,

Some
amounts
reported
for business-type
in the statement
student
support
services,
student activities
transportation,
general administration, school leadership, facilities acquisition
of
net
assets
are
different
because
certain
internal
service fund
assets
and construction and food services. Property
taxes,
state and federal aid, and investment earnings finance
and liabilities are included with business-type activities.
2,733,275

most of the activities. Additionally, all capital and debt financing activities are reported here.

Net assets of business-type activities

$

15,035,786

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers a broad overview of the District’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF DISCUSSION
REVENUES, EXPENSES,
MANAGEMENT’S
AND ANALYSIS
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
(Unaudited)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Our discussion and analysis of Houston Independent
SchoolActivities-Enterprise
District’s (the “District”)
Business-type
Funds financial performance
Governmental
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.
It should be
Activities which
read in conjunction with the transmittal letter at theFood
front of this Nonmajor
report and the basic financial statements
Service
Enterprise
Internal Service
follow this section.

Fund
Funds
Totals
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is a combination of both government-wide financial statements
Charges for sales and services:
andSales
fundtofinancial
statements.
customers
$
12,814,355 $
$
12,814,355 $
27,420,489
Consulting services
11,955,604
11,955,604
FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
Charges to other
funds
116,010,798
Miscellaneous
842,237
842,237
800,841
OnTotal
the operating
government-wide
assets of the11,955,604
District exceeded
liabilities by 144,232,128
$1.346 billion.
revenues financial statements, the
13,656,592
25,612,196

Of this amount, $627.4 million is unrestricted. Total net assets of the District increased from $1.342 billion in

OPERATING
EXPENSES:
fiscal year 2008
to $1.346 billion in fiscal year 2009, an increase of approximately $4.1 million. Total revenues
Payroll costs
1,196,253
42,614,670
increased
$45.1 million from $2.08 billion in fiscal41,418,417
year 2008 to $2.125
billion in fiscal
year 2009. 21,663,694
Purchased and contracted services
13,673,583
9,620,042
23,293,625
6,312,474
Supplies and materials
49,516,286
50,895
49,567,181
2,685,684
The District’s governmental funds financial statements reported a combined ending fund balance in fiscal year
Other operating expenses
784,410
145,076
929,486
1,934,884
2009
of $1.206 billion. Of this amount, $45 million is- reserved in the
General Fund- for restricted127,506,004
purposes and
Claims and judgments
$240.6
million is unreserved, undesignated in the3,277,039
General Fund and
is available
for spending at the
District’s
Depreciation
13,102
3,290,141
101,313
discretion.
Theexpenses
combined ending fund balance108,669,735
of the District 11,025,368
decreased $86.5
million from $1.292
billion in
Total operating
119,695,103
160,204,053
fiscal Operating
year 2008.
This
is due to increases in expenditures
related
services. (15,971,925)
income
(loss)
(95,013,143)for all instructional
930,236
(94,082,907)
NONOPERATING
REVENUES
(EXPENSES):
The District prepared
a budget
for the 2008-09 fiscal year that was based upon reducing expenditures by $35
Earnings
on investments
10,319 enrollment,
208,927
2,768,187
million
which
included reductions for loss of student
district-wide219,246
operating costs,
property
Grants frommiscellaneous
federal agencies: central office departments, and transfers to other funds. Increases for the budget
insurance,
Child nutrition program
68,037,995
totaled
$146 million primarily due to the District 68,037,995
becoming property- wealthy requiring
a recapture -payment to
Donated commodities
4,376,793
4,376,793
the Texas Education Agency of $126 million to be recorded as both a revenue and expenditure to the District.
Summer food program
5,036,012
5,036,012
However,
at the
end of(SHARS)
the fiscal year the District was
property wealthy
and therefore, the
School health
services
- no longer 6,841,465
6,841,465
- recapture
payment
was not necessary. Other operating expenditures
increased
in the amount
of $56 million
Star health
4,480,444
4,480,444
- including
salary
and benefits
increases, addition of the Aspiring
Principals Institute,
contract
charter schools,
State matching
and other
619,644
619,644
- appraisal
district
fees, addition
of the Performance Management
of the Communications
Total nonoperating
revenue
78,080,763 department,
11,530,836addition89,611,599
2,768,187 and

Publications department and one-time PUA (per unit allocations) funding to schools.
Income (loss) before transfers

(16,932,380)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Transfers in
Transfers out

-

12,461,072

(4,471,308)

(13,200,000)

(13,200,000)

(13,203,738)
750,000
-

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s
basic financial statements are comprised
of three(738,928)
components:
1) government-wide
financial
Change in net assets
(16,932,380)
(17,671,308)
(12,453,738)
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
contains
required supplementary information and
other supplementary
to the basic
Total net assets—beginning
17,678,996
12,294,823 information in addition84,910,836
financial statements themselves.
Total net assets—ending

Government-Wide Financial Statements

$

746,616

$

11,555,895

$

72,457,098

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement
of activities
are differentservices
because aare
portion
of the net
(expense)
All
of the District’s
reported
inrevenue
the government-wide
financial statements, including instruction,
of certainsupport
internal service
fundsstudent
is reported
with business-type
activities.
677,913
student
services,
transportation,
general
administration, school leadership,
facilities acquisition

and construction and food services. Property taxes, state and federal aid, and investment earnings finance
$ (18,349,221)
most of the activities. Additionally, all capital and debt financing activities are
reported here.

Change in net assets of business-type activities

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers a broad overview of the District’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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107,884,013
361,047,352
280,376,887
749,308,252

1,356,594
23,592,813
1,751,624
26,701,031

106,527,419
337,454,539
278,625,263
722,607,221

$

$

365,830,004
103,345,294
274,992,454
744,167,752

1,282,361
37,085,672
1,805,534
40,173,567

$

$

$

364,547,643
66,259,622
273,186,920
703,994,185

2003

$

2002

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

$

$

338,198,330
109,611,067
319,953,945
767,763,342

$

$

1,754,080
46,072,980
7,064,529
54,891,589

$

336,444,250
63,538,087
312,889,416
712,871,753

2004

$

Our discussion and analysis of Houston Independent School District’s (the “District”) financial performance
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. It should be
read in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the basic financial statements which
follow this section.

$

$

353,052,577
114,714,340
378,183,649
845,950,566

$

$

$

2,072,307
45,795,138
7,591,901
55,459,346

2005

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

350,980,270
68,919,202
370,591,748
790,491,220

$

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is a combination of both government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements.

$

$

381,023,971
154,796,355
506,952,802
1,042,773,128

$

$

6,821,047
35,179,989
20,622,642
62,623,678

$

$

374,202,924
119,616,366
486,330,160
980,149,450

Fiscal Year
2006

On the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $1.346 billion.
Of this amount, $627.4 million is unrestricted. Total net assets of the District increased from $1.342 billion in
fiscal year 2008 to $1.346 billion in fiscal year 2009, an increase of approximately $4.1 million. Total revenues
increased $45.1 million from $2.08 billion in fiscal year 2008 to $2.125 billion in fiscal year 2009.

NOTE: The district did not begin reporting government-wide statements until it implemented GASB Statement No. 34
in 2002. This schedule will ultimately report ten years of data.

$

$

475,709,559
99,401,266
661,753,120
1,236,863,945

$

$

18,506,309
16,171,618
18,070,470
52,748,397

$

$

457,203,250
83,229,648
643,682,650
1,184,115,548

(UNAUDITED)

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

The District’s governmental funds financial statements reported a combined ending fund balance in fiscal year
2009 of $1.206 billion. Of this amount, $45 million is reserved in the General Fund for restricted purposes and
$240.6 million is unreserved, undesignated in the General Fund and is available for spending at the District’s
discretion. The combined ending fund balance of the District decreased $86.5 million from $1.292 billion in
fiscal year 2008. This is due to increases in expenditures for all instructional related services.

$

For 2002, the fiscal year was September 1st through June 30th.
For the fiscal years ended 2003 and subsequent years, the fiscal year was July 1st through June 30th.

$

$

542,490,709
84,771,107
714,788,546
1,342,050,362
$

21,289,416 $
(6,253,630)
15,035,786 $

2009

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

627,712,544
91,063,905
625,997,623
1,344,774,072

$

$

23,315,673
10,069,334
33,385,007

$

519,175,036
84,771,107
704,719,212
1,308,665,355
606,423,128 $
91,063,905
632,251,253
1,329,738,286 $

2008

$

2007

The District prepared a budget for the 2008-09 fiscal year that was based upon reducing expenditures by $35
million which included reductions for loss of student enrollment, district-wide operating costs, property
insurance, miscellaneous central office departments, and transfers to other funds. Increases for the budget
totaled $146 million primarily due to the District becoming property wealthy requiring a recapture payment to
the Texas Education Agency of $126 million to be recorded as both a revenue and expenditure to the District.
However, at the end of the fiscal year the District was no longer property wealthy and therefore, the recapture
payment was not necessary. Other operating expenditures increased in the amount of $56 million including
salary and benefits increases, addition of the Aspiring Principals Institute, contract charter schools, appraisal
district fees, addition of the Performance Management department, addition of the Communications and
Publications department and one-time PUA (per unit allocations) funding to schools.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

$

$

Total
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

$

$

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities

$

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities

$

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
contains required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

All of the District’s services are reported in the government-wide financial statements, including instruction,
student support services, student transportation, general administration, school leadership, facilities acquisition
and construction and food services. Property taxes, state and federal aid, and investment earnings finance
most of the activities. Additionally, all capital and debt financing activities are reported here.
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers a broad overview of the District’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
contains required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

All of the District’s services are reported in the government-wide financial statements, including instruction,
student support services, student transportation, general administration, school leadership, facilities acquisition
and construction and food services. Property taxes, state and federal aid, and investment earnings finance
most of the activities. Additionally, all capital and debt financing activities are reported here.
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NOTE:

12,814,355
10,588,704
1,366,900
89,392,353
114,162,312
471,492,468 $

817,212 $
611,688
456,395
355,444,861
357,330,156

14,512,444
10,286,253
1,144,819
86,398,461
112,341,977
457,179,907 $

863,005 $
389,723
502,987
343,082,215
344,837,930

15,334,128
10,698,365
2,821,622
80,288,177
109,142,292
450,061,032 $

560,736 $
255,387
511,377
339,591,240
340,918,740

15,272,481
10,812,621
1,013,606
88,567,119
115,665,827
475,739,200

601,248
799,492
431,318
358,241,315
360,073,373

93,755,731
9,975,550
2,189,490
105,920,771
1,758,459,685

1,652,538,914

947,935,194
14,736,164
55,255,485
3,083,294
22,293,466
106,405,451
40,525,569
2,138,796
17,203,501
43,702,468
941,755
12,066,951
32,952,292
170,512,035
17,216,209
42,660,593
6,491,457
84,212,243
1,759,380
30,446,611

2005

$

$

$

14,285,756
11,923,323
505,588
77,965,153
104,679,820
413,564,682

212,937
507,209
384,540
307,780,176
308,884,862

87,901,512
11,504,388
1,590,650
100,996,550
1,704,294,875

1,603,298,325

933,918,916
15,801,797
63,482,263
20,418,266
105,468,250
32,396,704
1,939,208
17,005,205
40,416,249
1,778,372
10,918,951
29,644,063
143,380,615
15,267,598
37,344,751
7,038,225
96,967,675
898,122
29,213,095

On the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $1.346 billion.
Of this amount, $627.4 million is unrestricted. Total net assets of the District increased from $1.342 billion in
fiscal year 2008 to $1.346 billion in fiscal year 2009, an increase of approximately $4.1 million. Total revenues
increased $45.1 million from $2.08 billion in fiscal year 2008 to $2.125 billion in fiscal year 2009.
$

$

$

$

$

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is a combination of both government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements.
15,208,335
12,521,850
972,670
84,601,698
113,304,553
416,882,521

345,807
528,963
496,196
302,207,002
303,577,968

85,377,243
10,862,742
2,578,117
98,818,102
1,685,796,576

1,586,978,474

930,845,794
18,750,969
62,502,617
18,966,837
105,683,747
34,996,379
2,016,097
17,082,166
43,522,146
975,323
10,962,143
34,798,874
139,279,051
15,382,155
33,269,748
29,467,645
77,167,895
1,530,366
9,778,522
-

2004

$

$

$

$

15,691,341
9,369,647
1,005,931
78,622,610
104,689,529
419,468,104

702,620
240,694
967,260
359,981
312,508,020
314,778,575

77,752,666
8,845,388
1,318,608
87,916,662
1,737,056,189

1,649,139,527

914,481,999
17,716,445
73,517,087
20,815,612
103,621,499
42,073,627
3,091,918
17,569,548
48,408,754
1,937,675
10,073,569
39,258,814
139,444,950
15,746,984
27,022,858
24,814,605
93,432,099
1,222,126
54,889,358
-

2003

Our discussion and analysis of Houston Independent School District’s (the “District”) financial performance
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. It should be
read in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the basic financial statements which
follow this section.
$

$

$

$

14,946,863
5,172,821
930,137
68,506,077
89,555,898
304,745,859

606,342
195,677
1,187,225
271,626
212,929,091
215,189,961

70,191,111
4,893,228
1,121,713
76,206,052
1,466,032,761

1,389,826,709

771,827,152
16,268,799
56,271,350
17,132,765
86,413,711
42,993,487
3,308,199
15,731,433
45,065,380
692,390
9,857,659
34,637,060
126,200,268
13,669,644
23,856,962
18,447,782
65,523,556
1,001,000
40,388,478
539,634
-

2002

$ (1,644,733,530) $ (1,516,619,562) $ (1,428,777,850) $ (1,292,465,541) $ (1,294,413,463) $ (1,283,400,506) $ (1,334,360,952) $ (1,174,636,748)
(6,210,704)
(8,200,586)
(404,290)
9,745,056
3,683,270
14,486,451
16,772,867
13,349,846
$ (1,650,944,234) $ (1,524,820,148) $ (1,429,182,140) $ (1,282,720,485) $ (1,290,730,193) $ (1,268,914,055) $ (1,317,588,085) $ (1,161,286,902)

$

$

98,727,038
9,655,656
1,163,888
109,546,582
1,879,243,172 $

1,769,696,590

1,861,457,492

109,520,238
9,759,385
1,262,940
120,542,563
1,982,000,055 $

1,023,779,666 $
14,613,972
51,047,354
3,884,100
21,141,738
110,863,454
43,580,525
2,249,125
18,402,273
41,696,460
332,218
13,256,875
33,028,320
177,779,835
18,718,386
52,925,158
5,775,868
104,069,875
329,541
32,221,847

1,069,343,618 $
14,693,279
59,859,578
4,240,788
23,266,595
124,181,161
50,166,310
2,173,752
19,442,983
47,790,724
1,462,442
15,657,329
37,274,187
184,483,175
19,812,880
52,846,792
5,453,724
95,791,571
762,071
32,754,533

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers a broad overview of the District’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

For 2002, the fiscal year was September 1st through June 30th.
For the fiscal years ended 2003 and subsequent years, the fiscal year was July 1st through June 30th.

The district did not begin reporting government-wide statements until it implemented GASB Statement No. 34
in 2002. This schedule will ultimately report ten years of data.

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total net expense

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Food service
Business development
Medicaid
Operating grants and contributions
Total business-type activities program revenues
Total program revenues

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
Instruction
Food service
Co-curricular/extracurricular activities
Plant maintenance and operations
Operating grants and contributions
Total governmental entities program revenues

1,153,304,979 $
21,093,535
66,556,702
5,354,011
26,930,049
132,667,937
49,789,308
2,285,724
20,803,330
49,161,505
2,804,934
17,545,394
31,644,240
199,198,108
21,709,881
44,367,319
5,252,954
106,192,056
667,494
35,104,450
9,629,776
2,002,063,686

109,347,648
9,594,698
1,430,670
120,373,016
2,122,436,702 $

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
$

$

2006

The District’s governmental funds financial statements reported a combined ending fund balance in fiscal year
2009 of $1.206 billion. Of this amount, $45 million is reserved in the General Fund for restricted purposes and
$240.6 million is unreserved, undesignated in the General Fund and is available for spending at the District’s
discretion. The combined ending fund balance of the District decreased $86.5 million from $1.292 billion in
fiscal year 2008. This is due to increases in expenditures for all instructional related services.
Fiscal Year
2007

The District prepared a budget for the 2008-09 fiscal year that was based upon reducing expenditures by $35
million which included reductions for loss of student enrollment, district-wide operating costs, property
insurance, miscellaneous central office departments, and transfers to other funds. Increases for the budget
totaled $146 million primarily due to the District becoming property wealthy requiring a recapture payment to
the Texas Education Agency of $126 million to be recorded as both a revenue and expenditure to the District.
However, at the end of the fiscal year the District was no longer property wealthy and therefore, the recapture
payment was not necessary. Other operating expenditures increased in the amount of $56 million including
salary and benefits increases, addition of the Aspiring Principals Institute, contract charter schools, appraisal
district fees, addition of the Performance Management department, addition of the Communications and
Publications department and one-time PUA (per unit allocations) funding to schools.
2008

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Business-type activities:
Food service
Business development
Medicaid
Total business-type activities expenses
Total expenses

Expenses
Governmental activities:
Instruction
Instructional resources and media services
Instructional staff development
Curriculum development
Instructional leadership
School leadership
Guidance, counseling, and evaluation services
Social work services
Health services
Student transportation services
Food service
Co-curricular/extracurricular activities
General administration
Plant maintenance and operations
Security and monitoring services
Data processing services
Community services
Interest and fiscal charges
Juvenile justice alternative education program
Facilities acquisition and construction
Payments to fiscal agent/member districts
Tax reinvestment zone payments
Tax Appraisal and Collection
Total governmental activities expenses

2009

HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
EXPENSES, PROGRAM REVENUES, AND NET (EXPENSE)/REVENUE
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)
(UNAUDITED)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

10,325,447
111,306,852

100,981,405

(3,968,734)

1,271,649,419

405,366

(4,759,500)

385,400

4,759,500

1,275,618,153

16,211,835

5,326,967

19,619,556

-

14,274,841

82,612,661

211,844,026

920,968,767

13,349,846
(1,161,286,902)

2002

(1,174,636,748)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

13,472,536
(5,140,500) $

(18,613,036) $

$

(3,300,331)

1,312,447,585

(4,100,000)

315,497

484,172

1,315,747,916

4,100,000

18,673,706

-

10,621,967

-

14,747,423

212,887,113

86,722,125

967,995,582

$

16,772,867
(1,317,588,085) $

2003

(1,334,360,952) $

Our discussion and analysis of Houston Independent School District’s (the “District”) financial performance
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. It should be
read in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the basic financial statements which
follow this section.
8,877,568 $

14,718,022
23,595,590 $

231,571

1,292,509,645 $

(500,000)

449,466

282,105

1,292,278,074

500,000

14,381,864

-

5,150,398

-

14,789,089

167,739,282

90,096,030

999,621,411 $

14,486,451
(1,268,914,055) $

2004

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(1,283,400,506) $

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is a combination of both government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements.

The district did not begin reporting government-wide statements until it implemented GASB Statement No. 34

567,757
77,187,224 $

76,619,467 $

(3,115,513)

1,368,917,417 $

(4,947,017)

698,718

1,132,786

1,372,032,930

4,947,017

20,348,053

-

27,140,246

-

17,457,486

159,812,201

106,730,488

1,035,597,439 $

3,683,270
(1,291,730,193) $

Fiscal Year

GENERAL REVENUES AND TOTAL CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

2005

(1,295,413,463) $

On the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $1.346 billion.
Of this amount, $627.4 million is unrestricted. Total net assets of the District increased from $1.342 billion in
fiscal year 2008 to $1.346 billion in fiscal year 2009, an increase of approximately $4.1 million. Total revenues
increased $45.1 million from $2.08 billion in fiscal year 2008 to $2.125 billion in fiscal year 2009.
For the fiscal years ended 2003 and subsequent years, the fiscal year was July 1st through June 30th.

189,658,230 $

7,164,332
196,822,562 $
(9,875,281)
194,090,818 $

203,966,099 $

(2,580,724)

1,479,543,047 $
1,623,272,958 $

(4,900,000)

639,366

1,679,910

1,482,123,771

4,900,000

44,544,686

-

38,502,067

-

16,602,724

144,072,792

128,983,844

1,104,517,658 $
1,110,688,088 $

(1,292,465,541) $

9,745,056
(1,282,720,485) $
(404,290)
(1,429,182,140) $

(1,428,777,850) $

2006

(UNAUDITED)

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

The District’s governmental funds financial statements reported a combined ending fund balance in fiscal year
2009 of $1.206 billion. Of this amount, $45 million is reserved in the General Fund for restricted purposes and
$240.6 million is unreserved, undesignated in the General Fund and is available for spending at the District’s
discretion. The combined ending fund balance of the District decreased $86.5 million from $1.292 billion in
fiscal year 2008. This is due to increases in expenditures for all instructional related services.

For 2002, the fiscal year was September 1st through June 30th.

in 2002. This schedule will ultimately report ten years of data.

(19,363,390)
98,024,221 $

117,387,611 $
21,072,931 $

(18,349,221)
2,723,710 $

(9,470,991)
(11,162,804)

Total general revenues

1,622,844,369 $

(12,138,517)

1,653,667,944 $

Total business-type activities

(13,200,000)
(13,200,000)
(13,200,000)

2,510,034

1,218,975
981,646

1,055,550
219,246

842,237

1,632,743,949
1,634,007,173
1,665,806,461

13,200,000

18,945,507
13,112,562

13,200,000
13,200,000

23,940,145
Miscellaneous

-

56,967,051
48,972,905

21,379,916

-

18,954,929

-

26,927,592
Unrestricted investment earnings

2009

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-

20,562,533

286,432,562
462,758,750
365,108,678

125,130,825
140,629,766

936,378,261 $
1,058,019,228 $

158,048,285

(8,200,586)
(1,524,820,148) $

(1,516,619,562) $

2008

(1,644,733,530) $

(6,210,704)
(1,650,944,234) $

2007

The District prepared a budget for the 2008-09 fiscal year that was based upon reducing expenditures by $35
million which included reductions for loss of student enrollment, district-wide operating costs, property
insurance, miscellaneous central office departments, and transfers to other funds. Increases for the budget
totaled $146 million primarily due to the District becoming property wealthy requiring a recapture payment to
the Texas Education Agency of $126 million to be recorded as both a revenue and expenditure to the District.
However, at the end of the fiscal year the District was no longer property wealthy and therefore, the recapture
payment was not necessary. Other operating expenditures increased in the amount of $56 million including
salary and benefits increases, addition of the Aspiring Principals Institute, contract charter schools, appraisal
district fees, addition of the Performance Management department, addition of the Communications and
Publications department and one-time PUA (per unit allocations) funding to schools.

$

$

Business-type activities
Total change in net assets

$

Unrestricted investment earnings

Total governmental activities

Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT)

Tax increment reinvestment zone

State aid - not restricted to specific programs

Debt service property taxes

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Maintenance & operations property taxes

$

$

$

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
contains required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

NOTE:

Change in Net Assets

Governmental activities

Transfers

Miscellaneous

Business-type activities:

Transfers

E-rate activities

Taxes:

Governmental activities:

General Revenues

Governmental activities

Business-type activities
Total net expense

Net (Expense)/Revenue

All of the District’s services are reported in the government-wide financial statements, including instruction,
student support services, student transportation, general administration, school leadership, facilities acquisition
and construction and food services. Property taxes, state and federal aid, and investment earnings finance
most of the activities. Additionally, all capital and debt financing activities are reported here.
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers a broad overview of the District’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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5

90
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HOUSTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES FOR COMPUTATIONS OF INDIRECT COST FOR 2010-2011
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(UNAUDITED)

FUNCTION 41 AND RELATED FUNCTION 53 - GENERAL ADMINISTRATION , FUNCTION 99 APPRAISAL DISTRICT COST
Account
Number

Account
Name

611X-6146 Payroll Costs

6149

$

Tax
Collection

253,138

$

-

Supt's
Office
$

538,852

Indirect
Cost
$

Fringe Benefits (Unused Leave Only for
Separating Employees in Function 41
and Related 53)

6213
6214
621X
6220
6230
6240
6250
6260
6290
6320
6330
63XX
6410
6420
6430
6490
6500
6600

Fringe Benefits (Unused Leave Only for
Separating Employees in all Functions
except Function 41 and Related 53)
Legal Services
Audit Services
Tax Appraisal & Collection (Appraisal
district costs only from function 99)
Lobbying
Other Professional Services
Tuition & Transfer Payments
Education Service Centers
Contracted Maintenance & Repair
Utilities
Rentals
Miscellaneous Contract
Textbooks and Reading
Testing Materials
Other Supplies Materials
Travel, Subsistence, Stipends
Insurance & Bonding Costs
Election Costs
Miscellaneous Operating
Debt Service
Capital Outlay

6000

TOTAL

6149
6211
6212

School
Board

31,515,545

Direct
Cost
$

1,208,683

Miscellaneous
$

-

Total
$

151,725

151,725

3,375,023
-

-

1,692,108

3,375,023
1,692,108
375,000

375,000

9,629,776

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

36,415
352
9,283
32,435
74,935

-

-

406,558

9,629,776

835

2,341

2,239,565

1,519,283

$

45,497,194

82,659
-

-

$

4,911,474

2,631,397
$

2,714,056

Total expenditures/expenses for General and Special Revenue Funds
(plus Food Service Enterprise Fund if present)
Deductions of Unallowable Costs
FISCAL YEAR
Total Capital Outlay (6600)
Total Debt & Lease (6500)
Plant Maintenance (Function 51, 6100-6400)
Food
Stipends (6413)
Column 4 (above) - Total Indirect Cost
Subtotal:

9,629,776
118,800
1,890,784
3,618,576
39,105
5,502,398
57,393
626,530
393,397
183,834
1,596,559
2,631,397

-

3,618,576
5,679
39,163
3,373
-

39,105
5,455,374
56,542
494,590
357,589
183,834

-

$

36,000

-

-

-

$

118,800
1,854,784

4,930
499

33,516,218

$

65,398,623

$

1,871,395,663

$

354,699,207

$

1,516,696,456

$
$
$
$
$
$

2,656,536,880
1,272,777,930
1,860,923
265,921,568
14,870,850
1,256,058

Less:

$
$
$
$
$
$

68,019,990
228,681
201,016,789
39,936,553
45,497,194

Net Allowed Direct Cost

CUMULATIVE
Total Cost of Buildings before Depreciation
Historical Cost of Buildings over 50 years old
Amount of Federal Money in Building Cost (Net of Above)
Total Cost of Furniture & Equipment before Depreciation
Historical Cost of Furniture & Equipment over 16 years old
Amount of Federal Money in Furniture & Equipment (Net of Above)

Note A -

$22,018,075 in Function 53 expenditures are included in this report on administrative costs.
$ 9,629,776 in Function 99 expenditures for appraisal district costs are included in this report
on administrative costs.
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